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Company in the process of expansion of its business, your Directors have not recommended any dividend

for the year under review

1. In accordance with section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of Association of

the Company , Managing Director of the Company, retires

by rotation and being eligible; oers himself for re appointment at the forthcoming 25thAnnual General

Meeting. The Board recommends the said reappointment for shareholders’ approval.
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The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Director in accordance with

Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, that he/she

meets the criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) of the

SEBI Listing Regulations.

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may aec their status

as Independent Director’s of the Company and the Board is satised of the integrity, expertise, and

experience (including prociency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) of

all Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies

(Appointment and Qualicaion of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent Directors of the

Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent Director’s maintained with the

Indian Institute of Corporate Aairs.
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The Members of the Company on September 27, 2022, was re appointed M/s. N K Mital & Associates,

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113281W) as the statutory auditors of the Company till the

conclusion of 28thAnnual General Meeting (i.e., to conduct the Statutory Audit of the Company from the

Financial Year 2022 23 upto the Financial Year 2026 27), at such remuneration agreed between the Board

and Statutory Auditor.

Further, Auditors Report as issued by M/s. N K Mital & Associates., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of

the Company is self explanatory and need not call for any explanation by your Board.
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the Financial Year 2023 24 upto the Financial Year 2027 28
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CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:
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Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with Schedule V

part B(1) details of changes in Key Financial Ratios is given hereunder:

*Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary

S. NO. Key Financial Ratio FY 2022 23 FY 2023 24

1. Debtors Turnover Ratio % 165.95 45.96

2. Inventory Turnover Ratio %

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio %

4. Current Ratio % 9.71 29.33

5. Debt Equity Ratio %

6. Return on Equity % 183.10 53.50

7. Net ProMargin % 140.02 40.65

8. Net Capital Turnover % 18.09 17.66

9. Return on Capital Employed % 168.16 40.05
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i. The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the

Company for the financial year 2023 24; and

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer

and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year 2023 24.

MD & CEO Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer; NI NED – Non Independent, Non Executive Director; I

NED Independent, Non Executive Director, CFO – Chief Financial Officer; CS Company Secretary.

Notes:

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the nancial year

2023 24is Rs. / .

Name & Designation Remuneration of

each

Director &KMP for

FinancialYear 2023

24 (INR)

% increase/

decrease in

remuneration in

the Financial Year

2023 24

Ratio of

remuneration of

each Directors

to median

remuneration of

employees

A. Independent Directors

Mr. RajvirendraSingh Rajpurohit 35000

Mr. Manish H Chandak 35000

Ms. Archana Saini 40000

Mrs. Sonia Rakesh Bhatia 40000

B. Executive Directors/KMP

Mr. Roychand Chenraj

Mr. Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody

Mr. Sudhakar P Sonawane 2700000 04:01

Mr. Easwaran Subramaniam Iyer

Mr. Vinod Narsale 1080000 1.61:01

Ms. Priyanka Dharmesh Pandey 6,21,250 33.33% 01:1.07

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023 24.

Particulars Financial

Year 2023 24 (Rs.)

Financial

Year 2022 23 (Rs.)

Increase by

(%)

Median remuneration of all

employees

6,67,158 3,78,430 76.29

i. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.

There were 7 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024.

ii. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial

remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for

increase in the managerial remuneration.

iii. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, SeniorManagement and other

employees of the Company is as per the Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

G TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED

(Formerly known as Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited)

Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane

Place: Mumbai Managing Director Joint Managing Director

Date:01/07/2024 DIN:02713624 DIN:01689700

Regd. Office:

Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A Wing

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,

Maharashtra, IndiaMaharashtra, India
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Names of

employees

Designatio

n/ Nature o

Duties

Remuneratio

n

Received

[Rs.] p.a.

Qualificat

ion

Experience in

years

Age in

years

Date of

commencemen

of employmen

Last

employm

ent held

% of

share

holdi

ng

Sudhakar

Pandurang

Soanwane

Managing

Director 27,00,000 BA, MBA

30 51 24.04.1999 NA 20.12

Vinod Namdeo

Narsale CFO 10,80,000

B.com,

MBA

27 50 09.02.2017 KIIPL 0

Priyanka Pandey Company

Secretary

and

Complianc

e Officer

6,21,250 B.com, CS

LLB

4 33 21.10.2021 Shreeji

Advisory

Services

Private

Limited

0

COO 18,00,000

B.com,

MBA

29 48 09.02.2017 NA 0

Geeta B Tilwani Account

Assistant

Internal

Auditor

2,99,260 B.com,

GDCA,

MBA

25 45 01.08.2018 KIIPL 0

Dipti Dalvi HR 6,67,158 B.com,

MBA

20 38 15.4.2023 Flair

Pens Ltd

0

Santosh Sonawane Office

Assistant

1,70,887 HSC 12 37 01.02.2017 NA 0
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Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing
Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051
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Annexure VII

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 08, 2019]

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of “G TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED

(Formerly known as Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited)” for the year ended March 31, 2024.

We, Deep Shukla & Associates have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by G TEC

JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED [CIN: L72200MH1999PLC119661] (“the listed entity”),

(b) the lings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

(d) other relevant document(s)/ ling, which has been relied upon to make this cericaion,

for the year endedMarch 31, 2024 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions

of :

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations,

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (“SEBI”);

The specic Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have

been examined, are:

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations’)

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018;(to the extent applicable)

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011 (to the extent applicable);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not

applicable during the review period]
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(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benes) Regulations, 2014;

[Not applicable during the review period)

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

[Not applicable during the review period]

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible and Redeemable

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; [Not applicable during the review period]

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (to

the extent applicable);

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993, as amended;

(l) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018; and

circulars/guidelines issued thereunder;.

We hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity is

appended below:

Additional Affirmations

Sr.

No

Particulars Compli

ance

Status

(Yes/No

/NA)

Observat

ions/

Remarks

by PCS*

1 Secretarial Standards:

We have conducted a review of the compliance of listed entity

in accordance with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS)

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries India (ICSI).

Yes
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2 Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:

• All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are adopted

with the approval of board of directors / commitees, as may

be applicable of the listed entity.

• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations and

has been reviewed & timely updated as per the regulations/

circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI.

Yes

3 Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

• The listed entity is maintaining a functional website.

• Timely dissemination of the documents/ information under

a separate section on the website.

• Web links provided in annual corporate governance reports

under Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specic which

redirects to the relevant document(s)/ section of the website.

Yes

4 Disqualicaion of Director:

None of the Director of the listed entity are disqualied under

Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013.

Yes

5 To examine details related to Subsidiaries of listed entity:

(a) Idenicaion of material subsidiary companies

(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of material as well

as other subsidiaries

Yes

6 Preservation of Documents:

As per the conrmaions given by the listed entity, and on our

test check basis, it is preserving and maintaining records as

prescribed under SEBI Regulations and disposal of records as

per Policy of Preservation of Documents and Archival policy

prescribed under Listing Regulations.

Yes

7 Performance Evaluation:

The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of the

Board, Independent Directors, and the Commitees on an

annual basis as prescribed in SEBI Regulations

Yes

8 Related Party Transactions:

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of Audit

Commitee for all Related party transactions

Yes
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(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall

provide detailed reasons along with conrmaionwhether the

transaction were subsequently approved/ratied/rejeced by

the Audit commitee.

9 Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required disclosure(s)

under Regulation 30 along with Schedule III of Listing

Regulations within the time limits prescribed thereunder

Yes

10 Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6)

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

Yes

11 Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any:

No actions taken against the listed entity/ its

promoters/directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock

Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating

Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under

Page 5 of 7 SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued

thereunder.

Yes

12 Additional Non compliances, if any:

No additional non compliance observed for all SEBI

regulation/circular/guidance note etc.

Yes

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines

issued thereunder, except in respect ofmaters specied below:

Sr.

No

Compliance

Requirement

(Regulations/

circulars/guid

elines

including

specic

clause)

Regul

ation/

Circular

No.

Deviat

ions

Action

Taken

by

Type of Action

Advisory/ Clari

cation /Fine/ Show

Cause Notice/

Warning, etc.

Detail

s of

Viola

tion

Fine

Amt.

Observati

ons/Remark

s of

the

Practicing

Company

Secretary

Manag

ement

Response

Remark

1 Submission of

related party

transactions

23 1 day

late

submi

ssion

BSE Fine 1 day

late

submi

ssion

5000 Fine paid As per

available

record, the

Company

has paid

the ne
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(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in

previous reports:

Sr.

No

Compliance

Requirement

(Regulations/

circulars/guid

elinesincludin

g

specic

clause)

Regul

ation/

Circular

No.

Deviati

ons

Action

Taken

by

Type of Action

Advisory/ Clari

cation /Fine/ Show

Cause Notice/

Warning, etc.

Detai

is of

Viola

tion

Fine

Amt.

Observati

ons/Rem

arks of

the

Practicing

Company

Secretary

Manag

ement

Response

Remark

Not Applicable

For: M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates

Company Secretaries

(Peer Review Certificate No.: 2093/2022)

Sd/
Deep Shukla

Practicing Company Secretaries

FCS : 5652; CP : 5364

UDIN: F005652F000359698

Date: 13/05/2024

Place: Mumbai
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Din No. Name Of Director Date Of Appointment

01356394 Roychand Chenraj 12/12/2022

01689700 Sudhkar Pandurang Sonawane 29/04/1999

02713624 Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody 12/12/2022

10072574 Easwaran Subramaniam Iyer 25/04/2023

06770931 Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 09/02/2017

07306337 Sonia Rakesh Bhatia 28/12/2022

08220007 Manish Heeralal chandak 04/09/2020

08427866 Archana Sanjay Saini 06/05/2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of G-Tec Jainx Education Limited
(Formerly Known as Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of G-Tec Jainx Education Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013(the “Act”)in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) And other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Charted Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures



to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, managements is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as a applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected on influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.



 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charges with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2) As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report



expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as
on 31st March2024.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

e. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

f. Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any material mis-statements.

g. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

h. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software’s for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transaction
recorded in the respective software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

N KMittal
(Partner)
Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 24046785BKAOLX7877

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2024.



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of G-Tec Jainx Education
Limited (Formerly Known as Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited) on the financial statement as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

(1) (a) (A) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant & Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.
(b) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.
(c) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the company does not hold any immovable property during the year, hence 3(i)(c) is not applicable.
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(2) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is into service
sector, therefore question of physical verification does not arise.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has no working Capital limit sanctioned from Bank or Financial Institutions.

(3) (a) In our opinion and on the basis of examination of books and records and on the basis of information and
explanation given to us the Company has made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships. The
Company has also provided guarantee or security or granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties details of which are given hereunder:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

‐ Subsidiaries 46.80

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
such cases

‐ Subsidiaries 628.66

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided to the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal have not been stipulated. However, the interest payment dates are stipulated and such interest from the
wholly owned subsidiaries are not regular as detailed below: (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars INR

Wholly owned subsidiaries 152.34

Total 152.34

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that no amount is overdue for more than ninety days except for amounts of ₹ 152.34 lakhs, details of
which are given hereunder. The parties involved are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and the management
is monitoring them for ensuring recovery of the interest.



(Rs. in Lakhs)
No of Cases Principal overdues Interest overdues Total overdues Remarks, if any

2 - 152.34 152.34 Interest
Total - 152.34 152.34

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except as under:

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Party
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in
nature of Loans

- -

‐ Repayable on demands (A) - - 628.66

Aggregate does not specify any terms or
period of repayment (B)

- -

Total (A+B) - - 628.66
Percentage of Loans/ advances 100%

(4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(5) In our Opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

(6) According to the information and explanations given to us Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of activities carried by the
Company. Therefore, this clause is not applicable to the given company during the relevant year.

(7) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-tax,
Service tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the company did not have any dues on account of Provident fund, ESIC, Sales Tax, Custom Duty and excise duty.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were
in arrears as at March 31st, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(8) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief there are no
transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(9) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.
c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed any
term loans during the year.



d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the audit procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Financial
Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

(10) a) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year.
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

11) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no
fraud by the company nor any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with Central Government.
c) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no
whistle- blower complaints have been received

12) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
Companyis not a Nidhi Company hence, reporting under clause xii of the Order not applicable.

13) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where ever
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

14) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of it business.
b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit.

15) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors nor persons connected with them. The
provisions of section 192of Companies Act have been complied.

16) a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) a, b and c of the Order is not applicable.
b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

17) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

18) During the year there has not been any resignation of statutory auditors.



19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

20) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company,
Schedule VII to the Companies Act is not applicable to the Company.
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company,
subsection (5) and sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company

21) There have not been any qualifications or adverse remarks

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal
(Partner)
Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 24046785BKAOLX7877

Place: Mumbai
Date : 16th May, 2024



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report to the
Members of G-Tec Jainx Education Limited (Formerly Known as Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited) of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of subsection 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those standards and the guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention



or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI.

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal
(Partner)
Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 24046785BKAOLX7877

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2024.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

G-Tec Jainx Education Limited (Formerly Known as Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited) (“the company”) is a public
Limited Company, incorporated in India having its registered office at Unit No 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing, Pinnacle 
Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051. The equity shares of the Company are listed on 
NSE Limited. The company is engaged in the field of Information Technology related computer services. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION: 

A. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These standalone or separate financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for
issue on 16th May 2024. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency.  

C. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The following items 
are measured on each reporting date as under: 

 Defined Benefit plans- plan assets at fair value 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

D. Use of estimates and judgments 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 
 



 
Judgments: 
 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements have been given below: 

 Classification of leases into finance or operating lease 

 Whether an arrangement contains a lease. 

 Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment 
of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties: 
 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included below: 

 Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ liability. 

 Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. 

 Estimation of defined benefit obligation. 
 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies. 

 Impairment of trade receivables. 
 

E. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom 
equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or 
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimated and 
judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements. 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of the periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and 
the expected residual value at the end of its life. 
The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar as well as anticipation of future events, which 
may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 
 

2. Employee benefits 
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and based 
upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets, 
expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates. 
 
 



 
3. Revenue Recognition 

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the 
contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The Company allocates 
the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is 
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. The Company exercises 
judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of 
time. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such 
losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract. 

4. Leases 
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the 
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based 
on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar 
characteristics. 

5. Loss allowance for receivables 
The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect 
current and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future 
economic conditions relating to industries the company deals with and the countries where it operates. In 
calculating expected credit loss, the company has also considered credit reports and other related credit 
information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates 
of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -19. 

6. Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the 
amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

7. Contingencies 
On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and 
obligations. Obligations relating to project executions is largely depended upon performance of services by 
respective contractors for contingent losses that are considered Probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an 
accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed 
as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not 
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has been 
resolved ad amounts are received or receivable. 
 

      3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

A. Current and non-current classification 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating 
cycle; 
 



b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  
 
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date. 
 
Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
 
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Based on the nature of products and the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained 
its normal operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Noncurrent classification of assets and 
liabilities. 
 
B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
 
PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits 
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Property, plant and equipment 
acquired on hire purchase basis are recognized at their cash values. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are 
capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. 
 
PPE not ready for the Ended use on the Balance Sheet date is disclosed as "capital work in-progress. 
 
Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold 
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to 
the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, 
over the useful life so determined. 
 
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at 
each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on 
prospective basis. 
 
Depreciation on additions to / deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. 
 
An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is estimated that Company will not receive 
future economic benefits from its use or upon its disposal. Any gains and losses on disposal of such item of 



property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 
of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

C. Depreciation and amortization 
 
Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical parameters / 
assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions 
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 
maintenance support, etc. 
 
The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is aligned to the useful life specified under Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013 except useful life for computing depreciation in the following case: 
 
Assets  Useful Life (Years)  

Buildings 30 - 60 

Plant and Machinery  8 - 20 

Office Equipment  5 

Furniture & Fixtures  10 

Vehicles  8 - 10 

Computers  3 

Energy Saving Equipment  15 

Pollution Control Equipment  15 

Electric Installations  10 

 

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair              
approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.   

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition or 
installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial production.  

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided up to the 
date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped. 

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis. 

 
D. Impairment of assets 

 
As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment 
property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary company to determine whether there is any indication 
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for 
impairment each year. 
 
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is determined: 
 



a) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and 
b) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the 
higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use. 
 
The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing 
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is 
determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted for risks specified to 
the estimated cash flows of the asset 
 
For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 
 
If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such 
deficit is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
 
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognized for the asset 
(or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

E. Financial Instruments 
1) Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
 
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are subsequently classified 
as measured at 

 amortized cost 

 fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Derecognition 
 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
 
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; 
 



At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost has impaired and 
provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 
 
Measurement of expected credit losses 
 
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 
 
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet 
 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of 
the assets. 
 
Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is 
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does 
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. 
 
ii) Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are 
classified as fair value through profit and loss. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 
 
iii) Offsetting financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 



future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 
 

F. Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of cost of the 
assets, up to the date the asset is put to use. Other Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit & loss in the 
year in which they are incurred. 
 

G. Income tax 
 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax 
 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the 
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to 
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax 
is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses the Company recognizes 
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing 
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized 
/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realized. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no 
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified 
period. 
 

H. Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolesces and damages as 
under: 
 



(i) Raw and packing materials, stores and spares including fuel: At Cost on FIFO basis 
 
(ii) Stock in trade and Finished Goods: At Cost plus appropriate overheads 
 
Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

I. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and 
other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to 
more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.  
 

J. Provision and contingent liabilities  
The Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as a finance cost. 
             The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.  
             A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or where 
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of 
the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect 
the current management estimate. 
 

K. Revenue recognition  
 
A. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.  
 
B. Revenues from Products are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the customer, 
usually upon delivery of the goods. 
 
C. The Company Presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.  
 
D. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled revenues) 
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may also refer to as unearned 
revenues). 
 
 
 
 



E. Government Subsidy  
Subsidy has been recognized by the company on the basis of the notification received from the ministry of 
chemicals and fertilizers from time to time. 
  
F. other Revenue:  
Interest income : 
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR that is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying 
amount of the financial assets.  
 
Rental income  
Rental income arising from operating leases or on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the 
lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Insurance claims  
Insurance claims are accounted for as when admitted by the concerned authority. 
 

L. Earnings per share 
   
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders 
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders 
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earning per 
earning per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

4. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the 
related disclosures. 
 
Significant management judgements 

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets – The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an 

assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. 

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets –  The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

c) Contingent liabilities– At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal 

aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

d) Provisions – At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, 

the company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the 
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 
 
 



 
 
Significant estimates 

a) Impairment of financial assets – At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over 

expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the 
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also considers the factors 
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and 
country in which the customer operates. 

b) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 

depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in 
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets. 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 5. Tangible Assets (Rs in Lakhs)

Additions* Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto

PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2023 During During As at 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 For the year
During The
year 31.03.2024

As at
31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

The year The year

Air Conditioner 3.54 1.47 - 5.01 2.41 0.16 - 2.57 2.44 1.13

Furniture Fixtures 24.46 24.96 - 49.42 19.67 0.97 - 20.64 28.78 4.79

Office Equipments 4.29 1.16 - 5.45 3.91 0.06 - 3.97 1.47 0.38

Computer 53.25 8.97 0.04 62.18 53.20 0.14 - 53.34 8.85 0.06

Electrical Equipment 0.51 2.30 - 2.81 0.50 0.01 - 0.52 2.30 0.01

EPBX System 0.47 - - 0.47 0.43 0.00 0.04 0.47 0.00 0.04

Camera & Accessories 0.19 - - 0.19 0.16 0.00 0.02 0.19 0.00 0.03

47.68LATOT 38.86 0.04 125.56 80.30 1.35 0.06 81.72 43.84 6.43
* Refer Note No 41

Note 6. Intangible Assets
(Rs in Lakhs)

otpulatoTotpulatoTLATOTnoiteleDsnoitiddA

PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2023 During During As at 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 For the year Adjustment 31.03.2024
As at

31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

The year The year

Trademark 5.90 - 09.5 4.31 0.31 - 4.61 1.28 1.60

Intellectual Property Rights 9.50 - - 9.50 6.65 0.95 - 7.60 1.90 2.85

04.51LATOT - - 15.40 10.96 1.26 - 12.21 3.18 4.45

Note 7. Capital Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)

otpulatoTotpulatoTLATOTnoiteleDsnoitiddA

PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2023 During During As at 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 For the year Adjustment 31.03.2024
As at

31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

The year The year

E Application and E-Programe 11.84 - - 11.84 - - - - 11.84 11.84

Portal for recruitment training and
Placement 15.71 - - 15.71 - - - - 15.71 15.71

55.72LATOT - - 27.55 - - - - 27.55 27.55

a) Capital Ageing Schedule

CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
-raeY1nahtsseL -
71.3sraeY2-1 3.17
23.0sraeY3-2 0.32
60.42sraeY3nahteroM 24.06
55.72latoT 27.55

KCOLBTENNOITAICERPEDKCOLBSSORG

KCOLBTENNOITAICERPEDKCOLBSSORG

KCOLBTENNOITAICERPEDKCOLBSSORG
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3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasALATIPACERAHSYTIUQE.71etoN
A) Authorised,Issued,Subscribed and paid up Share Capital
and par value per share
Authorised Share Capital

00.005,2hcae-/01sRfoserahsytiuqE00,000,05,2 -
-hcae-/01sRfoserahsytiuqE00,000,01,1 1,100.00

1,100.00 00.001,1

Issued,subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
19.810119.8101.pudiapyllufhcae-/01.sRfoserahSytiuqE890,98,10,1

1,018.91 19.810,1

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasAserahsfo.onfonoitailicnoceR)B
890,98,10,1890,98,10,1gninepO

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year - -
Add: Prefrential shares issued during the year - -

--raeyehtgniruddeussI:ddA
890,98,10,1gnisolC 890,98,10,1

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the
Company

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane

056,94,02serahSfooN 056,94,02
%21.02%21.02ssalCnIgnidloH%

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
070,83,02serahSfooN 070,83,02

%00.02%00.02ssalCnIgnidloH%

G-Tec Education Private Limited
070,83,02serahSfooN 070,83,02

%00.02%00.02ssalCnIgnidloH%

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasAsretomorPfosliateD
In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane

056,94,02serahSfooN 056,94,02
%21.02%21.02serahslatot%
%00.04-%00.0raeyehtgnirudegnahc%

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
427,35,12serahSfooN 070,83,02

%00.02%41.12serahslatot%
%00.02%41.1raeyehtgnirudegnahc%

G-Tec Education Private Limited
070,83,02serahSfooN 070,83,02

%00.02%00.02serahslatot%
%00.02%00.0raeyehtgnirudegnahc%

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasAYTIUQEREHTO.81etoN

Securities Premium Account
-raeyehtfogninnigebehttA -
-raeyehtgnirudtnemevoM -
-raeyehtfodneehttaecnalaB -

Surplus in Profit and loss Account
25.31-raeyehtfogninnigebehttaecnalaB 73.381-
49.88raeyehtroftiforP:ddA 58.961

75.42 25.31-
Less: Appropriations

97.62sesnepxEeussIthgiR
26.79 -

26.84raeyehtfodneehttaecnalaB 25.31-
48.62 25.31-

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASGNIWORROB.91etoN

Unsecured
00.05ytraPdetaleRmorF -

50.00

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASELBAYAPEDART.02etoN

Trade Payables for expenses & Services
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro-enterprises
and small enterprises

10.75 52.1

10.75 52.1
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :Refer Note 39

Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2024

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than
3 Years

Total

MSME - - - - -
Others 10.75 - - - 10.75

-EMSM-detupsiD - - - -
-srehtO-detupsiD - - - -

10.75 - - - 10.75

Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2023

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than
3 Years

Total

MSME - - - - -
Others 1.25 - - - 1.25

-EMSM-detupsiD - - - -
-srehtO-detupsiD - - - -
1.25 - - - 1.25

Note 21. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Employee Benefit provisions

39.13elbayapseiralaS 34.71
Others

65.3sesnepxEroFytilibaiL 01.3

35.49 25.02

Note 22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

49.3seuDyrotutatS 01.71

3.94 01.71

Note 23. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

93.11xaTrofnoisivorP -

11.39 -

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
entitled to one vote per share.

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2024

Particulars

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

The Company has not received the required information from Suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the period end together
with interest paid / payble as required under the said Act have not been made.
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Note 8. INVESTMENT (Non Current) As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Investment in Subsidiary and wholly owned Company*

00.1detimiLetavirPnoitacudEreeraCitreeKniaJceT-GfoserahS 00.1
(Formerly Know as Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited)
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

00.1detimiLetavirPaidnIetutitsnIitreeKfoserahS 00.1
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

2.00 00.2
* Refer Note 36

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasA)tnerruCnoN(SECNAVDADNASNAOL.9etoN

Considered good - Unsecured
Loans and advances to related parties*

81.273dtLtvPaidnIetutitsnIitreeKotnaoL 94.723
74.652detimiLetavirPnoitacudEreeraCitreeKniaJceT-GotnaoL 73.452

628.66 68.185
* Refer Note 36
a) Loans and advances to promoters, Directors, KMP's and related party
Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act,
2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are :

Type of Borrower Outstanding Loans
Promoters - -
Directors - -
KMPs - -
Related Parties 628.66 001
Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related
Parties 628.66 00.001

66.826)A(secnavdAdnanaoLfoerutanehtnisecnavdAdnasnaoLlatoT 00.001

snaoLgnidnatstuOsnaoLgnidnatstuOreworroBfoepyT
Promoters - -
Directors - -
KMPs - -
Related Parties 581.86 00.001
Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related
Parties 581.86

68.185)A(secnavdAdnanaoLfoerutanehtnisecnavdAdnasnaoLlatoT

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASTESSALAICNANIFREHTO.01etoN

Others

Other Advances
Security Deposit 6.35 53.3

6.35 53.3

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasA)teN(STESSAXATDEREFFED.11etoN

Deffered Tax 1.85 06.2
1.85 06.2

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASEIROTNEVNI.21etoN

Closing Stock 2.34 98.1

2.34 98.1

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASELBAVIECEREDART.31etoN

Considered good - Unsecured 274.96 04.902
Less:
Allowance for Bad and doubtfull debts

274.96 04.902

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2024

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
36.501doogderedisnoc-selbavieceRedarTdetupsidnU)i 82.68 83.05 - 274.96

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -

105.63 82.68 83.05 - 274.96

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2023

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
73.801doogderedisnoc-selbavieceRedarTdetupsidnU)i 43.55 45.69 - 209.40

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -

108.37 43.55 45.69 - 209.40

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASTNELAVIUQEHSACDNAHSAC.41etoN

Cash in Hand 11.05 65.7
Balances in Bank 5.26 13.73
Fixed Deposit with bank 17.87 58.0

34.18 27.54

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasASECNAVDADNASNAOL.51etoN

Interest Receivable* 152.34 26.021

152.34 26.021
* Refer Note 36

3202hcraMts13tasA4202hcraMts13tasATESSATNERRUCREHTO.61etoN

Prepaid Expenses 0.31 -
-ytirohtuAeuneveRhtiwecnalaB 07.3

Advances 1.56 07.43
1.87 04.83

Particulars

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2024

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2024
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note 24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

94.375stpieceRytlayoRdnaselaSssorG 40.056

573.49 40.056

Note 25.OTHER INCOME
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

43.53*seitrapdetalerotnevignaoLnodeviecertseretnI 41.53
-dnuferTInotseretnI 31.0
30.1tseretnIrehtO 13.1
20.0parcSfoelaS

-tnemeltteSesaCtruoC 50.1
36.39 36.73

* Refer Note 36

Note 26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023
(Increase)/ Decrease in stock

98.143.2dneraeytA
-98.1raeyehtfogninnigebehttA

-0.45 -1.89

Note 27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

68.56sunoBdnasegaWseiralaS 53.84
04.0sesnepxEerafleWffatS 72.0
00.72noitarenumeRrotceriD 26.83

93.26 42.78

Note 28. FINANCE EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

73.0diaptseretnI 00.0
53.0segrahCknaB 37.0
52.0seefgnissecorP

0.97 47.0

Note 29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
CHARGES

For the year ended 31st
March 2024

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

06.2noitazitromA&noitaicerpeD 76.2
2.60 76.2

Note 30. OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

Payment made to auditors
00.3seeftiduA- 00.2
99.72sesnepxEtnemsitrevdA 50.21
11.0ffo/wstessA -
55.01sesnepxEdetaleRnoitacudEretupmoC 12.71
48.8gnillevarT&ecnayevnoC 06.01
61.0segrahcnoissimmoC 82.0
43.0segrahCyticirtcelE 20.3
95.662*sesnepxEesihcnarF 62.423
50.0ytlaneP&eniF -
49.1sesnepxEsecruoseRnamuH 59.6
09.81dewollasiDCTI 72.5
60.0sesnepxEecnarusnI 60.0
73.1seeFreussI 51.1
77.72segrahClanoisseforP&lageL 26.8
00.3seeFgnitsiL 00.3
90.3sesnepxEgniteeM 54.8
57.0sesnepxEegnahCemaN -
39.31sesnepxEeciffO 50.21

-ffo/nettirwsesnepxEyranimilerP 06.1
16.1ecnanetniaM&sriapeR 49.2
68.2sexaT&setaRtneR 84.4
05.1seeFgnittiS 56.0
76.3sesnepxEaideMenilnO&revreS 70.4
51.1tsoCnoitnevbuS -
89.0seeFgniniarT -
65.0sesnepxEenohpeleT 43.0

400.78 50.924
*Refer Note 36

Note 31. TAX EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

00.51xaTtnerruC -
20.8raeysuoiverpfoxaT -
57.0xaTderrefeD 00.0

00.087.32

Note 32. EARNING PER SHARE
For the year ended 31st

March 2024
For the year ended 31st

March 2023

49.88noitaxaTretfatiforP 58.961
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,01,89,098 890,98,10,1
Earnings per share

76.178.0).sRni(cisaB-
76.178.0).sRnI(detuliD-

Note 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND OTHER
MATTERS

For the year ended 31st
March 2024

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

a) Contigent Liabilites
b) Commitments

G-Tec Jainx Education Limited
Notes to the Accounts Forming part of the Financial Statement for the Year Ended March 31st, 2024.
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Note 34 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
I. The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - 274.96 - - 209.40
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 34.18 - - 45.72
Loans & Advances - - 152.34 - - 120.62
Total Financial Assets - - 461.48 - - 375.74
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable - - 10.75 - - 1.25
Other Financial Liabilities - - 35.49 - - 20.52
Total Financial Liabilities - - 46.24 - - 21.77

II. Financial Risk Management
The company has exposure to the following risk arising from fiancial instruments:

- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk; and
- Market Risk

i. Risk management framework
The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the
mechanism of property defined framework.
The Company's risk management polices are establised to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limites and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the
board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.
The Company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to its Audit Committee.

ii. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and losn given.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate.
The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness
before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as fas as
possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damange to the Company's reputation.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from
operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and cash
and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the
company. In additon, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets nacessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidty ratios against internal and external requlatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Maturities of financial liablites
The following are the remaing contracutal maturities of financial liabilites at the reporting date.

(Rs in Lakhs)

Carrying
Amount Total

Contractual
cash flows :

With in 1 Years
Carrying
Amount Total

Contractual
cash flows :

With in 1 Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 10.75 10.75 10.75 1.25 1.25 1.25
Other Financial Liabilities 35.49 35.49 35.49 20.52 20.52 20.52
Other Current Liabilities 3.94 3.94 3.94 17.10 17.10 17.10
Total Financial Liabilities 50.19 50.19 50.19 38.87 38.87 38.87

iv. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices which will affect the
Company' s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market exposures withing acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk : As company does not deals in foreign currencies, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Commodity risk: As company deals in services sector , therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Interest Risk: As the Company does not have any borrowings from outsider, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Note 35 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to ensure that is will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Compnay consits of Zero debt and having only equity and
internal accurals.
The company's net debt equity ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
00.05tbedteN 0
35.760,1ytiuqE 1,005.39

Debt/ Equity ratio 0.05 -

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
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Note 36 : Related Party transactions
Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing
Director)
Roychand Chenraj (Chairman Non
Exec)
Mehroof Manalody (Managing
Director)
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-
12-2022
Archana Sanjay Saini (Independent
Director)
Manish Heeralal Chandak (Independent
Director)
Rajvirendra Singh (Independent
Director)
Tanual Raju Sonawane (Director) upto
12-12-2022
Soniya Bhatia (Independent Director)
Vinod Narsale (CFO)
P V Vinod (Director : COO)
Priyanka Pandey (CS)
G-Tec Education Private Limited
Keerti Institute India Private Limited
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education
Private Limited (Formerly known as
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited)
Sangeeta Sonawane
Tanul Sonawane
Santosh Sonawane
Nutan Sonawane

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Borrowings
Dr. Roychand Chenraj 25.00 -
G-Tec Education Private Limited 25.00 -

Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 44.83 -
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited 2.10 7.40

Other Current Assets
Keerti Institute India Private Limited (Advance) 34.20 34.20

Purchase of Assets
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 38.78 -

Other Income
Interest received on Loan
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 19.75 19.65 -
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited 15.58 15.49

Payment to key Management Personnel
Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing Director) 27.00 36.00
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 - 2.62

Indirect Expenses
Royalty expenses
Keerti Institute India Pvt Ltd 263.89 324.26

Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.40 0.13
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.35 0.13
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.35 0.23
Tanul Raju Sonawane - 0.13
Soniya Bhatia 0.40 0.05

Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane 0.09 2.05
Sangeeta Sonawane 0.09 2.05

Salary
Santosh Sonawane 1.39 2.07
Tanul Sonawane 0.07 0.64
Vinod Narsale 10.80 9.00
P V Vinod 18.00 15.00
Priyanka Pandey 6.22 4.36

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Sitting Fees (payable)
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.25 0.05
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.20 0.05
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.20 0.05
Tanul Raju Sonawane -
Soniya Bhatia 0.15 0.05

Salary (payable)
Vinod Narsale 0.90 0.90
P V Vinod 0.22 1.68
Tanul Sonawane - 0.18
Priyanka Pandey 0.60 0.40
Santosh Sonawane 0.09 0.14

Remuneration to directors (payable)
Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing Director) 21.32 13.38
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 - -

Rent (Payable)
Sudhakar Sonawane - -
Sangeeta Sonawane - -

Non Current Assets : Investment
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited 1.00 1.00

Keerti Institute India Private Limited 1.00 1.00

Current Assets: Loans & Advances (Receivable)

Interest Receivable
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 95.41 77.63
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited 56.99 42.97

Borrowings (Payable)
Dr. Roychand Chenraj 25.00 -
G-Tec Education Private Limited 25.00 -

Other Current Assets (Receivable)
Keerti Institute India Private Limited (Advance) - 34.20

Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances 
(Receivable)
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 372.18 327.49
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited 256.47 254.37

Note 37: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company's business activity falls within a single reportable business segment, viz, Information Technology.

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.      

Details of transactions with related parties as on 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 :-

Balance Outstanding of Related Party as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Wholly owned Subsidiary of G-Tec Jainx Education Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary of G-Tec Jainx Education Limited

Relative of Director's

Entities having significant Influence



Note No 38 : All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

Note No 39 :Micro and Small Enterprises
3202,hcraMts13tasA4202,hcraMts13tasAsralucitraP

--rodnevoteudtnuomA

-noerehteudtseretniehtdnatnuomalapicnirpeht)a -

-diaptseretnifotnuomaeht)b -

-elbayapdnaeudtseretnifotnuomaeht)c -

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid - -

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable - -

Note No 40 : Other Statutory Information
i) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
ii) The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company

for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
iii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as survey or

survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.
iv) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the

statutory period.
v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with

the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any banks / financial institution or government or any government authority.
viii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets during the current year or

previous year.
ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies

(Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
x) The Company has not obtained any term loans from banks and financial institution during the year.
xi) The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well previous year with Companies struck off

under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note No 41 : Fixed Assets transferred at Book value of INR 38.77 Lacs (approx) from Keerti Institute India Private Limited against the Loan
Receivable as per the Board Meeting held on March 22, 2024.

Note No 42 : Ratio : As per " Annexure A"

Note No 43 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and/or rearranged whenever necessary to compare with the
figures of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached
srotceriDfodaorBehtfoflahebnodnaroFfoflahebnodnaroF

detimiLnoitacudExniaJceT-GsetaicossA&lattiMKN
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N KMittal Mr. Mehroof Manalody Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director

587640.oNpihsrebmeM

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
yraterceSynapmoCreciffOlaicnaniFfeihC

4202,yaMht61,iabmuM4202,yaMht61,iabmuM
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
Annexure "A"
Financial Ratio

13tasAsralucitraP
March,
2024

As at 31
March,
2023

% change in
2023-24 &
2022-23

Reason for change in the ratio by more
than 25% in 2023-24 & 2022-23

stessatnerrucniesaerceDoteuD%33.92-07.0165.7oitaRtnerruC)a(
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 0.05 - 0.00% NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.85 - 0.00% NA
(d) Return on Equity Ratio 0.09 0.18 -53.50% Improvement in ratio due to % increase in

earnings as compared to previous year.
ANAN--*oitarrevonrutyrotnevnI)e(

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio 2.37 4.38 -45.96%
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio* - - 0.00% NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio 1.42 1.72 -17.66% NA

tiforpdnaeuneveRniesaerceDoteuD%56.04-%31.62%15.51oitartiforpteN)i(

(j) Return on Capital employed 0.10 0.17 -40.05% Due to Decrease in Revenue and profit

ANANANtnemtsevnInonruteR)K(

* As the company is in the services industry therefore there will be no inventory

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED
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22-raM32-raM42-raM22-raM32-raM42-raM
22-raM32-raM42-raMshkalnisRshkalnisRshkalnisRrotanimoneDshkalnisRshkalnisRshkalnisRrotaremuNsisylanAoitaR

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities
selbayapedarT-98.143.2seirotnevnI 10.75 1.25 1.92

Trade Receivables 274.96 209.40 87.29 Other Financial Liabilities 35.49 20.52 21.02
Cash and Bank balances 34.18 45.72 59.92 Other current liabilities 3.94 17.10 2.07
Short-term loans and advances & Other
Current Assets

154.21 159.02 96.83 Current Tax Provision (Net) 11.39 -

75.16latoT40.44230.61486.564latoT 38.87 25.02 7.56 10.70 9.76

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity
Total Outside Liabilities 50.00 - - Total Shareholders Equity 1,067.53 1,005.39 835.54 0.05 - -

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio ecivreStbeD*emocnIgnitarepOteN

(For Ind AS Companies Profit before
OCI)

Net Profit after tax + non-cash
operating expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations + Interest+other
adjustments like loss on sale of fixed
assets, etc.

92.51 173.25 -205.12 Current Debt Obligation (Interest
& Lease payment+ Principal
Repayment.

50.00 - - 1.85 - -

4 Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period Avg. Shareholders Equity
Net Profit after taxes - preference
dividend (if any)

88.94 169.85 -208.72 (Beginning shareholders' equity +
Ending shareholders' equity) ÷ 2

1,036.46 920.46 939.90 0.09 0.18 (0.22)

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory
(Opening Stock + Purchases) – Closing
Stock

- - - (Opening Stock + Closing
Stock)/2

- - - - - -

6 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade Receivables
+selbavieceRedarTgninnigeB(66.91340.05694.375selaStiderC

Ending Trade Receivables) / 2
242.18 148.35 194.01 2.37 4.38 1.65

7 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Total Purchases Average Trade Payables
Annual Net Credit Purchases - - - (Beginning Trade Payables +

Ending Trade Payables) / 2
- - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working Capital
Total Sales - Sales Return 573.49 650.04 319.66 Current Assets - Current

Liabilities
404.11 377.16 219.03 1.42 1.72 1.46

9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales
94.375selaS27.802-58.96149.88xaTretfAtiforP 650.04 319.66 0.16 0.26 (0.65)

10 Return on Capital employed EBIT Capital Employed
Profit before Interest and Taxes 113.68 170.59 -208.01 Capital Employed = Total Assets -

Current Liabilities
1,117.54 1,005.40 835.53 0.10 0.17 (0.25)

11 Return on Investment
Income Generated from Invested
Funds

NA NA NA Average Investment Funds NA NA NA NA NA NA

* Excluding Processing fees

* Capital Employed could be treated three ways

Total Assets - Current Labilities
Fixed Assets + Working Capital
Equity + Long Term Debt

*** ROI as per GN
ROI = {MV(T1) – MV(T0) – Sum [C(t)]}

{MV(T0) + Sum [W(t) * C(t)]}

where, T1 = End of time period
T0 = Beginning of time period
t = Specific date falling between T1 and T0
MV(T1) = Market Value at T1
MV(T0) = Market Value at T0
C(t) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date
W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (i.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day ‘t’, calculated as [T1 – t] / T1

Companies may provide ROI separately for each asset class (e.g., equity, fixed income, money market, etc.).

tiforPssorG%PG Net Sales
375selaS393,1428 650 37.341 214.33
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(Rs in Lakhs)
Note As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

PARTICULARS No (Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 5 67.81 76.63
b) Right to Use Assets
c) Intangible Assets 6 3.18 4.44
d) Capital work in Progress 7 27.55 27.55
e) Financial Assets
i. Investments -
ii. Loans & Advances
iii. Others 8 44.11 33.97

f) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 9 19.56 17.02
g) Other non-current assets

162.21 159.61
2 Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 11.14 3.36
b) Financial Assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade Receivables 11 461.66 379.25
iii. Cash and cash equivalent 12 38.39 53.65
iv. Bank Balances
v. Loans and Advances 13 16.93 11.00
vi. Others

c) Other current assets 14 11.21 19.26
539.33 466.52

Total Assets 701.54 626.13

1 Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 15 1,018.91 1,018.91
b) Other equity 16 -544.63 -506.12

474.28 512.79
2 Liabilities

Non-current liabilites
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 17 50.00
ii. Others

b) Provisions
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
d) Other Non-current liabilities

50.00 -
Current Liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Lease Liability
iii. Trade Payables 18 45.08 14.82
iv. Others 19 111.11 70.43

b) Provision
c) Other current liabilities 20 9.68 28.09
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 21 11.39

177.26 113.34

Total Equity and Liabilities 701.54 626.13

Significant Accounting Policies "3"
The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 38 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N KMittal & Associates G-Tec Jainx Education Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA (Dr.) N K Mittal Mr. Mehroof Manalody Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 046785

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 16th May, 2024 Mumbai, 16th May, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited)

(CIN Numer: L72200MH1999PLC119661)
Statement of Consolidated Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
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Note No 34 : Related Party transactions
Details of related parties:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars G-Tec Jainx Education

Limited
Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

G-Tec Jain Keerti
Career Education
Private Limited

Non Current : Loans And Advances 46.93 - -

Non Current : Long Term Borrowings - 44.83 2.10

Revenue from Operations - 263.89 -

Other Income-Interest on Loan 35.33 - -

Other Current Assets
Advance 34.20 - -

Borrowings
Dr. Roychand Chenraj 25.00
G-Tec Education Private Limited 25.00

Purchase of Assets 38.78 - -

Sale of Assets - 38.78 -

Other Current Financial Liabilities
Advance - 34.20

Purchase
G-Tec Education Private Limited - 10.40 -

Finance charges Interest on loan - 19.75 15.58
(Rs in lakhs)

Payment to key Management Personnel

Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing
Director)

27.00 -
-

Pandurang Patekar - 8.40 -

Indirect Expenses
Royalty 263.89 - -

Salary
Santosh Sonawane 1.39 - -
Tanul Sonawane 0.07 - -
Vaishali Nile 2.76 2.76 -
Vinod Narsale 10.80 - -
P V Vinod 19.00 - -
Nutan Sonawane 0.66 0.66 -
Priyanka Pandey 6.22 - -

Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane 0.09 7.94 0.06
Sangeeta Sonawane 0.09 7.94 0.06
Kisan Sonawane - 1.95 -
Raju Sonawane - 3.50 -
Keerti Institute India Private Limited - - 0.35

Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.40 - -
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.35 - -
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.35 - -
Tanul Raju Sonawane - - -
Soniya Bhatia 0.40 - -

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars G-Tec Jainx Education

Limited
Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

G-Tec Jain Keerti
Career Education
Private Limited

Payable
Rent - 14.50 10.24
Remuneration 21.32 0.53
Salary 1.81 0.24
Sitting fees 0.80 - -
Interest Payable - 95.41 56.99
Sundry Creditors - 10.25 -
Borrowings 50.00
Loans & Advances - 372.18 256.47
Receivable
Interest Receivable 152.40 - -
Loans & Advances 628.65 - -

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars G-Tec Jainx Education

Limited
Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

G-Tec Jain Keerti
Career Education
Private Limited

Non Current : Loans And Advances 7.40 - -

Non Current : Long Term Borrowings - - 7.40

Revenue from Operations - 324.26 -

Other Income-Interest on Loan 35.14 - -

Finance charges Interest on loan - 19.65 15.49

Other Current Assets
Advance 34.20 - -

Other Current Financial Liabilities
Advance 34.20

Payment to key Management Personnel
Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing
Director)

36.00 -
-

Pandurang Patekar 2.62 5.18 -

Indirect Expenses
Royalty 324.26 - -

Salary
Santosh Sonawane 2.07 - -
Tanul Sonawane 0.64 - -
Vaishali Nile - 2.70 -
Vinod Narsale 9.00 - -
P V Vinod 15.00 - -
Nutan Sonawane - 1.42 -
Priyanka Pandey 4.36 - -

Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane 2.05 5.46 1.36
Sangeeta Sonawane 2.05 5.46 1.36
Kisan Sonawane - 1.65 -
Raju Sonawane - 2.00 -

Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.13 - -
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.13 - -
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.23 - -
Tanul Raju Sonawane 0.13 - -
Soniya Bhatia 0.05 - -

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars G-Tec Jainx Education

Limited
Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

G-Tec Jain Keerti
Career Education
Private Limited

Payable
Rent - 19.15 8.48
Remuneration 13.38 0.60 -
Salary 3.30 0.08 -
Sitting fees 0.20
Interest Payable - 77.63 42.97
Advances Payable - 34.20 -
Loans & Advances - 327.49 254.37
Receivable 
Interest Receivable 120.60 - -
Advances Receivable 34.20 - -
Loans & Advances 581.86 - -

Note 35: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company's business activity falls within a single reportable business segment, viz, Information Technology.

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.
Details of transactions with  related parties  as on 31st March, 2024 :-

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2024

Details of transactions with related parties as on 31st March, 2023:

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2023

Relative of Director's

Sangeeta Sonawane
Santosh Sonawane
Nutan Sonawane
Tanul Sonawane
Vaishali Nile
Kisan Sonawane
Raju Sonawane

Wholly owned Subsidiary in India
G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited
(Formerly known as Keerti Tutorial India Private
Limited)

Rajvirendra Singh (Independent Director)

Tanual Raju Sonawane (Director) upto 12-12-2022

Soniya Bhatia (Independent Director) w.e.f 28-12-
2022

Vinod Narsale (CFO)

P V Vinod (Director : COO) w.e.f 12-12-2022

Priyanka Pandey (CS) from 21.10.2021

100% Holding Company in India G-Tec Jainx Education Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary in India Keerti Institute India Private Limited
Entities having significant Influence G-Tec Education Private Limited

G-TEC JAINX EDUCATION LIMITED

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing Director)

Roychand Chenraj (Chairman Non Exec) w.e.f 12-
12-2022
Mehroof Manalody (Managing Director) w.e.f 12-12
2022

Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022

Archana Sanjay Saini (Independent Director)

Manish Heeralal Chandak (Independent Director)



Note No 36 : All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

Note No 37 :Micro and Small Enterprises
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Amount due to vendor - -

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon - -

b) the amount of interest paid - -

c) the amount of interest due and payable - -

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid - -

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable - -

Note No 38 : Other Statutory Information
i) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
ii) The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company

for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
iii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as survey or

survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.
iv) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the

statutory period.
v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with

the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any banks / financial institution or government or any government authority.
viii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets during the current year or

previous year.
ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies

(Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
x) The Company has not obtained any term loans from banks and financial institution during the year.
xi) The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well previous year with Companies struck off

under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note No 39 : Fixed Assets transferred at Book value of INR 38.77 Lacs (approx) from Keerti Institute India Private Limited against the Loan
Receivable as per the Board Meeting held on March 22, 2024.

Note No 40 : Ratio : As per " Annexure A"

Note No 41 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and/or rearranged whenever necessary to compare with the
figures of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N KMittal & Associates G-Tec Jainx Education Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA (Dr.) N K Mittal Mr. Mehroof Manalody Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director

Membership No. 046785

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 16th May, 2024 Mumbai, 16th May, 2024
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